AssetW**O**RKS

Unit Availability

User Guide

Version 24.x Last Modified 24.0 | March 2024 © 2024 AssetWorks Inc., its subsidiaries and affiliates. All rights reserved.

Private and Confidential. Not for public dissemination.

Information contained in this document is proprietary to AssetWorks Inc. and may be used or disclosed only with written permission from AssetWorks Inc. This guide, or any part thereof, may not be reproduced without the prior written permission of AssetWorks Inc. This document refers to numerous products by their trade names. In most, if not all, cases these designations are claimed as Trademarks or Registered Trademarks by their respective companies. This document and the related software described in this manual are supplied under license or nondisclosure agreement and may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of the agreement. The information in this document is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of AssetWorks Inc. The names of companies and individuals used in the sample database and in examples in the manuals are fictitious and are intended to illustrate the use of the software. Any resemblance to actual companies or individuals, whether past or present, is purely coincidental.

Technical Support

AssetWorks provides several ways to connect with the Customer Support team. Be prepared to provide detailed information to the representative. If you are reporting an issue by email, include screen shots of your problem. This will provide the Customer Support representative with the information needed to respond quickly and effectively.

Customer Support is available Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Eastern Time.

Telephone: 1-610-225-8300

Email: M5Support@AssetWorks.com

Website: https://community.assetworks.com/hc/en-us

The support website can be used to open issues, subscribe to user groups and download documentation, as well as to access the latest AssetWorks news. For secure access to the website, contact Customer Support by calling the number above.

Unit Availability - User Guide

Version 24.x

Last Modified 24.0 | March 2024

Contents

1.	Introduction	1
	About this Guide	1
2.	Availability Frames	2
	Availability Unit Status	3
	Availability Requirements	4
	Availability Status Codes	5
	Availability Line Codes	6
	Availability Status Query	6
	Availability Line Query	7
	Availability Required Query	8
	Availability Requirement Query	9
	Operational Class Codes	9
	Operational Entity Groups	10
	Availability Current Status Query	11
	Availability Disposition Codes	11
	Availability Unit Confirmation	12
	Availability Confirmation Query	12
	Availability Status History Query	13
3.	User Privileges	14
4.	Operational Entity Groups	15
	Create an Operational Entity Group	15
	Setup for Entering Confirmations	16
5.	System Flags	17
	Asset Management System Flags	17
	2032 – Operational entity: 1-Using;2-Owner	18
	2033 – Availability reporting entity label	19
	2034 – Availability reporting rollup entity	20
	2038 – Show insufficient unit availability warning Y)es, N)o, or J)ustify to continue	21
	2042 – Require EST DAYS OOS in Availability Unit Status?	22
	2052 – Allow Availability Unit Confirmation on a holiday/weekend?	22
	2128 – Unit Availability is maintained for Non-Revenue Units? (Y/N)	23
	5072 – Default Operational Status Code	23

	Workshop/Shop Management System Flags	24
	2040 – Prompt for Operational Status from Work Order Process	24
	5075 – Advanced Availability? A - Advanced, L - Limited, S – Standard	25
	5086 – Estimated OOS format? (1 - OOS by Day, 2 - OOS by Date)	26
	5087 – Journal OOS and Estimated Complete Changes? (1 - Do Not Journal, 2 - Journal)	27
	5088 – ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE OUTSIDE LIMIT	28
6.	Codes	29
	Availability Line Codes	30
	Create an Availability Line Code	30
	Operational Class Codes	31
	Creating an Operational Class Code	31
	Availability Disposition Codes	32
	Creating an Availability Disposition Code	32
	Availability Status Codes	33
	Creating an Availability Status Code	33
	Availability Unit Status	34
	Maintain a Unit Status	34
	Availability Requirements	37
	Change an Availability Requirement	37
	Availability Unit Confirmation	38
	Confirm the Number of Units Out of Service	38
7.	Queries	.40
	Availability Confirmation Query	40
	Availability Status Query	41
	Availability Line Query	41
	Availability Current Status Query	42
	Availability Required Query	43
	Availability Status History Query	44
Up	dates	.45

1. Introduction

The Unit Availability Module provides users with the ability to track when units are in or out of service and/or available for use.

About this Guide

This guide consists of the following sections:

- Availability Frames
- User Privileges
- Operational Entity Groups
- System Flags
- Codes
- Queries

2. Availability Frames

The M5 Fleet Management System includes a module for checking vehicle availability or Unit Availability. This process is performed through a series of pages, or frames:

- Availability Unit Status
- Availability Requirements
- Availability Status Codes
- Availability Line Codes
- Availability Status Query
- Availability Line Query
- Availability Required Query
- Availability Requirement Query
- Operational Class Codes
- Operational Entity Groups
- Availability Current Status Query
- Availability Disposition Codes
- Availability Unit Confirmation
- Availability Confirmation Query
- Availability Status History Query

Availability Unit Status

The Availability Unit Status frame allows you to view and maintain availability information for any unit that has an Operational Class Code. For additional information, refer to the help file.

Availability Unit Status	
Unit Information Unit:	
Unit:	
Operational Entity:	
Operational Class:	
Operational Status:	
Disposition Code:	
Effective Date:	
Est. Days OOS: Est. Complete Date:	
Comment:	
Parking Location:	
Parking Spot:	
Spare:	

Availability Requirements

The Availability Requirements frame designates the number of units required (by class) for a particular entity, at a specific time. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND
Availabili	ty Rec	luireme	ents	
-Requirement Informa	ation			
Operational Entity:				
Operational Class:				
Operational Line:				
Line Time:				
Effective Date:				
Quantity Required:				
E-Mail Address:				

Availability Status Codes

The Availability Status Codes frame allows you to create and maintain a set of codes that indicate a unit's current availability. The three-character Status Code includes an Availability Disposition Code and is a critical component of the Unit Availability Module. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAV	E		UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIN	1D		
Availa	ab	ility	/ Sta	tus Cod	es				
Status Code	Main	tenance	e (Loaded 24	4 records)					
	Disp	osition				Wait For		[10000]	
Status		Code	Description	n		Mate Flag	Disabled		
AAA		1	Avail Code	AAA - Disp = 1					
AIN		1	Available If	f Needed					
AVL		1	Available						
BBB		1	Avail Code	BBB Disp = 1					
DWN		5	UNIT DOW	'N					
EXP		2	express						
LDO		3	Lot Down						
MOV		3	Moves						
MRR		2	Minor Run	ning Repairs					
NEW		4	new test						
OFD		3	Off-Road D	Down					
OFF		1	Offsite						
00S		3	minor repa	air					
OPS		3	major repa	air					
OSC		3	Out Of Ser	vice					
PSD		3	Police Stre	et Down					_
050							0		-

Availability Line Codes

Availability Line Codes are used to set up the number of times throughout the day that a user may check available units in the fleet. It also sets the earliest time that the confirmation counts can be made for that line. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE FIND						
Aveilability Line Onder									
valia		Codes							
ine Code Maintenance (Loaded 4 records)									
Line	Confirm Time	Line Time	Description	#					
AM	01:00:00	03:00:00	AM LINE						
EARLY	09:00:00	12:00:00	EARLY SHIFT						
EVE	12:00:00	15:00:00	EVENING SHIFT						
EVE PM	12:00:00 13:00:00	15:00:00 18:00:00	EVENING SHIFT PM LINE						

Availability Status Query

The Availability Status Query allows you to search for, and view Unit Operational Status History by Operation Entity or Group. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE UNDO REFRESH	DELETE FIND							
Availability Status Query								
History Information Operational Entity: Unit Number:								
Operational Class:								
Query By: None V Select one to provide more query inform	rmation							
None Select one to provide more query information Clear Retrieve								
Unit Operational Status History (Loaded 0 records)								
Operational Operational Operational Oper Unit No Entity Class Status Code	erational le Effective Date Login User							

Availability Line Query

The Availability Line Query frame allows you to search for, and view, the Operational Line Requirement history for a selected Operational Entity or Group and Class by Line or Date. For additional information, refer to the help file.

	SAVE	UN	DO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND		
ŀ	Vaila	bility	Line	Query	,			
	Operational Operational Operational Operational Operational Operational	Entity: Class:			mation			
	Clea	r C	Retrieve					
	Operational L Operational Entity	Operational	ent History (L	oaded 0 record Operational Class	is) Effective Date	Units Required		
	2					•		

Availability Required Query

The Availability Required Query frame allows you to search for, and view, the number of units required, versus the number of units available per Entity, Line, and Class. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE	D REFRESH	DELETE	FIND		
Availability R	equired Q	uery			
-History Information					
Operational Entity: Operational Class:					
Operational Line:					
Line Time:					
From Date:	To Date:				
Show Weekday Only?	Show Deficiency	Only?			
	Clear	Retrieve			
Operational Units Requiremen	t and Availability Query (Lo	aded 0 records)			
Oper Entity Oper Class Date	Day Of Week Oper Line Line	Time Confirm Time	Units Required	Units Avail	

Availability Requirement Query

The Availability Requirement Query allows you view the detailed requirement information for a certain Operational Entity or Group. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND		
Availability Rec	quiremer	nt Quei	ry		
-History Information					
Operational Entity: 🗸					
Operational Class:					
Operational Line:					
Line Time:					
Effective Date:	Clear	Retriev	re		
Operational Line Requirements (Lee	ided () records)				
Oper Entity Oper Line Line Time	Oper Class Class D	Description Effe	ective Date	Units Required 🎹	

Operational Class Codes

Operational Class Codes are user-defined codes that classify the different types of equipment that will be tracked using the Unit Availability Module. A unit must have an Operational Class Code assigned to it on Unit Main to track it using Unit Availability. For additional information, refer to the help file.



Operational Entity Groups

The Operational Entity Groups frame allows you to create and maintain Operational Entity Groups to assign to user roles. They are used in much the same way as Location Groups (for example, for querying or reporting purposes and restricting user access).

Operational Entity Groups are used in the Unit Availability module. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE	DO REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	RELATED 🗸							
Operational	Operational Entity Groups										
Operational Entity Group Ma Operational Entity Group	Operational Entity Group Maintenance Operational Entity Group:										
	Operational Entity Group:										
+ Operational Entities	+ Operational Entities Roles										
testered Or certification											
Assigned Operational En	tity Groups (Loaded 0 reco	ords)									
Operational Entity	Description										

Availability Current Status Query

The Availability Current Status Query allows you to search for and view the status of units for a selected Operational Entity or Group. For additional information, refer to the help file.

	SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND MORE ~	
A	vailability Current Status Query	
ſ	History Information	
	Operational Entity:	
	Operational Class:	
	Operational Status:	
	Disposition Code:	
	ANY V	
	Current Job Maint Loc:	
	Exclude Available: Clear Retrieve	
0	Total Information	
	Units currently UNAVAILABLE:	
	Operational Unit Current Status History (Loaded 0 records)	
	Operational Operational Disposition Days Work Order Current Job Unit No Entity Description Class Status Code OOS Effective Date Work Order Open Date Maint Loc Status Comments Login User	1

Availability Disposition Codes

Availability Disposition Codes are one-character codes assigned to Availability Status Codes for reporting purposes. You can create up to 10 Availability Disposition Codes. For additional information, refer to the help file.

	SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELET	E	FIND	
Availability Disposition Codes							
Disposi	tion Codes (L	oaded 8 records	s)	Disabled			
Disposi Code 0	tion Codes (L Description No Disposit	oaded 8 records	s)	Disabled		^	
Disposi Code 0 1	tion Codes (L Description No Disposit Available	oaded 8 records	s)	Disabled		^	

Availability Unit Confirmation

The Availability Unit Confirmation frame allows you to confirm the number of units that are out of service for the selected Operational Entity, Operational Line, and Confirm Date. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND			
Availability Unit Confirmation							
-History Information-							
Operational Entity:							
Operational Line:							
Confirm Date:							
User ID:)					
Password:							
Linite Out Of Cerui							
	be:						

Availability Confirmation Query

The Availability Confirmation Query allows you to search for and view all operational entities and their respective confirmation times for a selected Operational Line, Rollup Entity, or Confirm Date. You may also filter on a combination of the three. For additional information, refer to the help file.



Availability Status History Query

The Availability Status History Query frame allows you to search for and view the Operational Status History for a specific unit number. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH DEL	ete fin	D		
Availability Sta	tus History	Query			
History Information		. ,]
Unit:					
Operational Entity:					
Filter by Operational Entity and	Class:				
✓ Operational Status:					
Disposition Code:					
Effective Date:	٥				
Work Order No:	Clear	etrieve			
				1)
Operational Status History (Loaded	0 records)	Effective Date	0		
Oper Status Disp Code Status	Pescription WO No. Unit No	 Effective Date 	Comments		

3. User Privileges

There are five user privileges that are independent of each other. For example, if the user only has the UNITAVAIL-COMMENTS privilege, then all they can do is update the comments. However, if the user has both UNITAVAIL-COMMENTS and UNITAVAIL-OPERSTAT, then the user has the privileges of UNITAVAIL-OPERSTAT, which includes entering comments.

User Privilege Designations	Description
UNITAVAIL-COMMENTS	The user is only allowed to enter comments on the Availability Unit Status page.
UNITAVAIL-BACKDATE	The user has full access to Availability Unit Status, as well as being able to backdate the "effective date."
UNITAVAIL-CONFIRMCT	The user will be required to provide a user ID and password when confirming the Availability Confirmation Count.
UNITAVAIL-JUSTIFY	Needs to be set in conjunction with System Flag 2038. If the user is authorized to override the requirements message, then this needs to be set.
UNITAVAIL-OPERSTAT	The user can only change the operational status, effective date, estimated days OOS, and comments on the Availability Unit Status page.

4. Operational Entity Groups

Operational Entity Groups are just like location groups. They are used for querying and reporting purposes. From the Operational Entity Groups page, you can create an entity group that includes whichever operational entities that could possibly be grouped together, for both reporting purposes and for entry of confirmation counts. In order to give a user access to enter confirmation counts, an operational entity group must be assigned to the database user.

Note: An operational entity is whatever the value that was set up in the System Flag 2032. If the flag was set to using department, then you would only see those using departments that have units with an operational class.

Create an Operational Entity Group

- 1. Access the Operational Entity Group frame.
- 2. Enter the name of the new entity group in the **Operational Entity Group** field and press **Tab**.
- 3. Select **Create** in the Action Required pop-up window.
- 4. Double-click in the **Operational Entity** field or use the binoculars icon to view the available operational entities. The system displays a list of all available entities.
- 5. Double-click on the desired entity.

The system returns to the Operational Entity Groups page where the description of the department displays. If the entered department is not a valid operational entity, the system displays a "Value not found on file" error message.

6. Continue to enter as many entities as needed for the newly created group.



7. Select **SAVE**.

The system adds the operational entity group. After the operational entity group exists, you can associate it to any database users who should have access to those departments when performing queries or entering confirmation counts.

Setup for Entering Confirmations

Roles play a central part in defining users of the M5 System. Roles are the foundation records for building Application Users.

- 1. Access the Role Maintenance frame.
- 2. Enter the name of the Role to update in the **Role** field and press **Tab**.
- 3. Select the **Locations/Oper Entities** tab on the Role Maintenance frame.
- 4. Use the double arrow buttons to select the unauthorized and authorized operational entities in the Operational Entities section of the frame.
- 5. Select SAVE.

5. System Flags

The Unit Availability Module uses the following system flags:

- Asset Management
- Workshop/Shop Management

Asset Management System Flags

The Unit Availability Module uses the following Asset Management system flags:

- 2032 Operational entity: 1-Using;2-Owner
- 2033 Availability reporting entity label
- 2034 Availability reporting rollup entity
- 2038 Show insufficient unit availability warning Y)es, N)o, or J)ustify to continue
- 2042 Require EST DAYS OOS in Availability Unit Status?
- 2052 Allow Availability Unit Confirmation on a holiday/weekend?
- 2128 Unit Availability is maintained for Non-Revenue Units? (Y/N)
- 5072 Default Operational Status Code

System Flag 2032 – Operational entity: 1-Using;2-Owner

The flag defines the search criteria for the Operational Entity queries. This flag determines what is an operational entity. For example, if you select "1," then all units that have an operational class, their using department will then become an operational entity, which then can be used for querying.

SAVE UNDO REFRESH	DELETE FIND
System Flags	
System Flags Information	
Flag No: 2032	
Operational entity: 1-Using;2-Owner	
System Module: ASSET MANAGEMENT	
Format: Integer	
M5 Release:	
Default Value: 1	
User Value:	7
System Flags Notes:	-
The flag defines the search criteria for the Operational Entit reports.	y report. This flag will indicate which entities will be part of the selection criteria in the various unit availability

System Flag 2033 – Availability reporting entity label

By entering a label here, you are indicating how the name should appear for either column headings within reports or the search criteria within the availability queries. The default is "Using Department."

Note: If the user changes the value in this flag at any time, a TMS script needs to be run: Update_Oper_Entity_Label_Orc.TMS.

SAVE UNDO RE	FRESH DELETE	FIND	
System Flags			
— System Flags Information			
Flag No: 2033 Description:			
Availability reporting entity label. System Module: ASSET MANAGEMENT			
Format: Character			
M5 Release:			
Default Value: Using Department			
User Value:			
System Flags Notes:			
Unit Availibility By entering a label here, the Availability Report frame. The default is "U	e user is indicating how the nam Ising Depart".	hould appear for either column headings within reports or t	the search criteria within the Unit

System Flag 2034 – Availability reporting rollup entity

This flag determines to which level of the organization (as determined in the Department Corporate Hierarchy frame) the reports will roll up. The default is "1."

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DE	ELETE FIND
System Flags	
System Flags Information	
Flag No: 2034 Description: Availability reporting rollup entity .	
System Module: ASSET MANAGEMENT	
Format: Integer	
M5 Release:	
Default Value: 1	
User Value:	
System Flags Notes:	
Unit Availability - This flag determines to which level of the or which is from the Department Main frame.	ganization (as determined in Department Corporate Hierarchy.) the reports will roll up. The default value is 1,

System Flag 2038 – Show insufficient unit availability warning Y)es, N)o, or J)ustify to continue

Setting this flag to "N" shows no message even if unit availability becomes insufficient. Setting this flag to "Y" or "J," forces a pop-up warning on the Availability Requirements page upon saving changes.

Availability Requirements example

"Unit availability is below the requirement for DISPATCH 14606, Operational Class C, Operational Line CITY-PM, because the requirement has been raised."

If the system flag is set to "J," then when the AVAILABILITY UNIT CONFIRMATION page is accessed, the user must enter an authorized user name and password and justify the deficiency. The database user must have the UNITAVAIL-JUSTIFY privilege.

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND
System Flags
C System Flags Information
Flag No: 2038 Description: Show insufficient unit availability warning Y)es, N)o, or J)ustify to continue.
System Module: ASSET MANAGEMENT
Format: Character
M5 Release:
Default Value:
User Value:
System Flags Notes:
Show insufficient unit availability warning Y)es, N)o, or J)ustify to continue. Setting this flag to "N" will show no message even if unit availability becomes insufficient. Setting this flag to "Y" or "J" will force a popup warning in Availability Requirements upon saving changes. Availability Requirements example: "Unit availability is below the requirement for DISPATCH 14606, Operational Class C, Operational Line CITY-PM, because the requirement has been raised." In the above example, DISPATCH is set in module flag 2033, 14606 is the owning department number, C is the Operational Class and CITY-PM is the Operational Line.

System Flag 2042 – Require EST DAYS OOS in Availability Unit Status?

Setting this flag to "Y," forces the user to enter the estimated days that they believe the unit will be out of service in Availability Unit Status. The default is "Y."

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND
System Flags
- System Flags Information
Flag No: 2042
Description: Require EST DAYS OOS in Availability Unit Status?
System Module: ASSET MANAGEMENT
Format: Character
M5 Release:
Default Value: Y
User Value:
System Flags Notes:
Unit Availability Require Est Days OOS in Availability Unit Status? Setting this flag to "Y", will force the user to enter the estimated days that they believe the unit will be out of service in the Availability Unit Status. "Y" is the default.

System Flag 2052 – Allow Availability Unit Confirmation on a holiday/weekend?

Setting this flag to "Y" allows the user to enter confirmation counts in Availability Unit Confirmation on holidays and weekends, based on the fiscal calendar.

	SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
S	System Flags	
0	- System Flags Information	
	Flag No: 2052	
	Description: Allow Availability Unit Confirmation on a holiday/weekend?	
	System Module: ASSET MANAGEMENT	
	Format: Character	
	M5 Release:	
	Default Value: N	
	User Value:	
	N Sustam Elane Natae:	
	oyosen rags rous.	
	Confirmation on holidays and weekends.	

System Flag 2128 – Unit Availability is maintained for Non-Revenue Units? (Y/N)

Setting this flag to "Y" enables Unit Availability and Operational Class to be maintained for Non-Revenue Units.

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND
System Flags
System Flags Information
Flag No: 2128 Description:
Unit Availability is maintained for Non-Revenue Units? (Y/N)
System Module: ASSET MANAGEMENT
Format: Character
M5 Release:
Default Value: N
User Value:
System Flags Notes:
Setting this flag to "Y" enables Unit Availability and Operational Class to be maintained for Non-Revenue Units.

System Flag 5072 – Default Operational Status Code

When entering an operational class to a unit for the first time, the user must determine a default operational status to assign to the unit. Usually an "available" operational status code is entered here. The operational status code must be a valid code that has already been created in the Availability Status Codes page.

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
System Flags	
-System Flags Information-	_
Flag No: 5072	
Description: Default Operational Status Code	
System Module: UNIT AVAILABILITY	
Format: Character	
M5 Release:	
Default Value: AVL	
User Value:	
AVL	
System Flags Notes:	
If using the Unit Availability module, the user can set a default "valid" operational status for all new units.	

Workshop/Shop Management System Flags

The Unit Availability Module uses the following Workshop/Shop Management system flags:

- 2040 Prompt for Operational Status from Work Order Process
- 5075 Advanced Availability? A Advanced, L Limited, S Standard
- 5086 Estimated OOS format? (1 OOS by Day, 2 OOS by Date)
- 5087 Journal OOS and Estimated Complete Changes? (1 Do Not Journal, 2 -Journal)
- 5088 ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE OUTSIDE LIMIT

System Flag 2040 – Prompt for Operational Status from Work Order Process

When set to "N," the current M5 work order functionality will be maintained. When set to "Y," the Availability Unit Status page will appear, allowing the user to view the current status of the unit and/or update the status. This operates per work order, not per job.

System Flags	
System Flags Information Flag No: 2040 Description: Prompt for Operational Status from Work Order Process.	
System Module: WORKFLOW/SHOP MANAGEMENT Format: Character	
M5 Release: Default Value:	
User Value: Y System Flags Notes:	
If N, the user will be returned to the work order main frame displaying the curren current status of the unit and/or update the status. This operates per work order	it work order. If Y, the availability unit status frame will appear, allowing the user to view the r, not per job

System Flag 5075 – Advanced Availability? A - Advanced, L - Limited, S – Standard

When set to "A," advanced unit availability warning messages will display. The operational status frame cannot be closed by the user when opening a new work order and the unit will automatically be set back to available when closing a work order. In addition, when taking a unit out of service the user will be prompted to open a work order. When set to "L," limited unit availability the operational status frame can be closed by the user without changing the operational status. When set to "S," standard unit availability the operational status frame cannot be closed by the user without changing the operational status frame cannot be closed by the user without changing the operational status frame cannot be closed by the user without changing the operational status when a work order is opened. Also, when the user completes or closes the work order they will also be prompted to change the operational status.

	SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
S	ystem Flags	
_	System Flags Information	2
	Flag No: 5075 Description: Advanced Availability? A - Advanced, L- Limited, S- Standard	
	System Module: WORKFLOW/SHOP MANAGEMENT	
	Format: Character	
	M5 Release:	
	Default Value:	
	User Value:	
	System Flags Notes:	
	When set to "A" advanced unit availability warning messages will display. The operational status frame cannot be closed by the user when opening a new work order and the unit will automatically be set back to available when closing a work order. In addition when taking a unit out of service the user will be prompted to open a work order. When set to "I" limited unit availability the operational status frame can be closed by the user without changing the operational status. When set to "S" standard unit availability the operational status frame cannot be closed by the user without changing the operational status. When set to "S" standard unit availability the operational status frame cannot be closed by the user without changing the operational status. When set to "S" standard unit availability the operational status frame cannot be closed by the user without changing the operational status frame cannot be closed by the user without changing the operational status frame cannot be closed by the user without changing the operational status frame cannot be closed by the user without changing the operational status frame cannot be closed by the user without changing the operational status when a work order is opened. Also, when the user completes or closes the work order they will also be prompted to change the operational status.	

System Flag 5086 – Estimated OOS format? (1 - OOS by Day, 2 - OOS by Date)

When set to "1," the user will only have the ability to enter the estimated OOS days as an integer value on the Availability Unit Status page. The estimated Complete field will be protected and entry will not be allowed. This integer value will be used to calculate the estimated OOS complete date. When set to "2," the user will only have the ability to enter the estimated complete OOS date on the Availability Unit Status page. The estimated OOS days field will be protected and entry will not be allowed. This date value will be used to calculate the estimated OOS days field will be protected and entry will not be allowed. This date value will be used to calculate the estimated OOS days and cannot be greater than 365 days out if System Flag 5075 is set to "A".

	SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND
S	System Flags
	- System Flags Information
	Flag No: 5086 Description: Estimated OOS format? (1 - OOS by Day, 2 - OOS by Date)
	System Module: WORKFLOW/SHOP MANAGEMENT
	Format: Integer
	M5 Release:
	Default Value: 1
	User Value:
	System Flags Notes:
	If set to "1", the user will only have the ability to enter the estimated OOS days as an integer value from the Availability Unit Status frame. The estimated complete field will be protected and entry will not be allowed. This integer value will be used to calculate the estimated OOS complete date. If set to "2", the user will only have the ability to enter the estimated COS days field will be protected and entry will not be allowed. This date value will be used to calculate the estimated OOS days field will be protected and entry will not be allowed. This date value will be used to calculate the estimated COS days field will be protected and entry will not be allowed. This date value will be used to calculate the estimated OOS days.

System Flag 5087 – Journal OOS and Estimated Complete Changes? (1 - Do Not Journal, 2 - Journal)

When set to "1," Unit Availability will journal operational status history changes based on an update to the Status, OOS days or effective date. All other modifications will update the existing operational status history record. When set to "2," Unit Availability will journal operational status history changes for every change. No update to existing records will take place.

	SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
S	System Flags	
C	System Flags Information	
	Flag No: 5087	
	Description: Journal OOS and Estimated Complete Changes? (1 - Do Not Journal, 2 - Journal)	
	System Module: WORKFLOW/SHOP MANAGEMENT	
	Format: Integer	
	M5 Release:	
	Default Value: 1	
	User Value:	
	System Flags Notes:	
	If set to "1", Unit Availability will journal operational status history changes based on an update to the Status, OOS days or effective date. All other modifications will update the existing operational status history record. If set to "2", Unit Availability will journal operational status history changes for every change. No update to existing records will take place.	

System Flag 5088 – ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE OUTSIDE LIMIT

This flag sets the number of days into the future that the estimated completion date and time can be set. When set to "0" (zero) will not enforce an outside date and time limit. The estimated completion date and time can be set as far into the future as the user desires. When System Flag 5075 is set to "A" for Advanced Availability the user value of this flag cannot exceed 365.

	SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
S	System Flags	
0	- System Flags Information	
	Flag No: 5088 Description: ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE OUTSIDE LIMIT.	
	System Module: WORKFLOW/SHOP MANAGEMENT	
	Format: Integer M5 Release:	
	Default Value:	
	User Value: 400	
	System Flags Notes:	
	This flag sets the number of days into the future that the estimated completion date and time can be set. Setting this flag to "0" (zero) will not enforce an outside date and time limit. The estimated completion date and time can be set as far into the future as the user desires. When module flag 5075 is set to "A" for Advanced Availability the user value of module flag 5088 cannot exceed 365.	

6. Codes

The Unit Availability Module uses the following codes:

- Availability Line Codes
- Operational Class Codes
- Availability Disposition Codes
- Availability Status Codes
- Availability Unit Status
- Availability Requirements
- Availability Unit Confirmation

Availability Line Codes

M5 uses Availability Line Codes to set up the number of times throughout the day that a user can check available units in the fleet. An Availability Line Code also sets the earliest time that the confirmation counts can be made for that line.

These codes are used on the Availability Requirements frame. At least one line needs to be defined in order to use the Unit Availability Module. For additional information, refer to the help file.

Create an Availability Line Code

- 1. Access the Availability Line Codes frame.
- 2. Enter the name of the Line you wish to track in the **Line** field and press **Tab**. The Line can be up to 10 characters.
- Enter the earliest time that the confirmation counts can be entered in the Confirm Time field and press Tab. All times must be entered in 24-hour time format. The Confirm Time field time cannot be greater than the Line Time field time for the entered line.

Note: If you are not confirming the number of units available for your line, then skip the **Confirm Time** field.

- 4. Enter the peak time to check availability and see the number of units available for the entered time in the **Line Time** field and press **Tab**. The **Line Time** field time cannot be less than the **Confirm Time** field time for the entered line.
- 5. Enter as many lines as needed.

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE FIND					
Availability Line Codes								
Line Code Mai	intenance (Loaded 4 rec	ords)						
Line	Confirm Time	Line Time	Description					
AM	01:00:00	03:00:00	AM LINE					
EARLY	09:00:00	12:00:00	EARLY SHIFT					
EVE	12:00:00	15:00:00	EVENING SHIFT					
PM	13:00:00	18:00:00	PM LINE					
-								

6. Select **SAVE**. The system creates the Availability Line Code.

Operational Class Codes

Operational Class Codes are user-defined codes that classify the different types of equipment that will be tracked using the Unit Availability Module. A unit must have an Operational Class Code assigned to it on Unit Main to track it using Unit Availability. Prior to their individual assignment at the unit level, an Operational Class Code must be established through the Operational Class Codes frame. For additional information, refer to the help file.

Creating an Operational Class Code

- 1. Access the Operational Class Codes frame.
- 2. Enter the name of the Class in the **Class** field and press **Tab**. The class can be up to 10 characters.
- 3. Enter a description of the Class in the **Description** field. The description can be up to 30 characters.

Note: If you select the Disabled checkbox, the corresponding operational class can no longer be assigned to a unit.



4. Select **SAVE**. The system creates the Operational Class Code. The Class can now be assigned to the unit in Unit Main under the "Employee/Class" tab.

Availability Disposition Codes

Availability Disposition Codes are one-character codes assigned to Availability Status Codes for reporting purposes.

Codes 1 and 4 are hardcoded as many report and query frames use these two disposition codes. The description for Code 1 is normally "Available" and Code 4 is "Offsite."

You can create up to ten Availability Disposition Codes. For additional information, refer to the help file.

Creating an Availability Disposition Code

- 1. Access the Availability Disposition Codes frame.
- 2. Enter the number of the Disposition Code in the **Code** field and press **Tab**. The Code is one character.
- Enter a description of the Disposition Code in the **Description** field. The description can be up to 30 characters.
 - **Note**: If you select the **Disabled** checkbox, the corresponding disposition code can no longer be tied to an availability status code.

	SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELET	E	FIND
∆va	ilahil	ity Disr	nositio	n Cor	les	
Disposi	tion Codes (Record 8 of 8)	5051110		100	
Code	Description	,		Disabled		
0	No Disposi	ition				
1	Available					
2	00S Onsit	e Priority A				
3	00S Onsit	e Priority B				
4	00S Offsit	e				
5	Code 5					
7	DISABLED	DISP CODE		<		
9	Code 9					-

4. Select SAVE.

Availability Status Codes

Availability Status Codes are a set of codes that indicate a unit's current availability. The three-character user-defined Status Code includes an Availability Disposition Code, which is a critical component of the Unit Availability Module. For example, if a unit has a minor repair, but is still operational, you can create a "Waiting for Parts" status code. For reporting purposes and querying, "AVL" and "MRR" are both marked with a disposition code of available meaning that if you were to query on disposition code "1," all units that have an availability status of "AVL" and "MRR" would display.

Creating an Availability Status Code

- 1. Access the Availability Status Codes frame.
- 2. Enter the user-defined name of the Status Code in the **Status** field and press **Tab**. The Status Code is three characters.
- 3. Enter a description of the Status Code in the **Description** field. The description can be up to 30 characters.
 - **Note**: If you select the **Disabled** checkbox, the corresponding Status Code can no longer be used.

SAV	/E	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIN	1D	
Avail	ability	Stat	tus Coo	des			
Status Cod	le Maintenance	e (Record 24	of 24)				
Status OFD	Disposition Code 3	Description Off-Road Do	own		Wait For Mate Flag	Disabled	
OFF	1	Offsite					
00S	3	Minor Repa	ir				
OPS	3	Major Repa	ir				
OSC	3	Out Of Serv	rice				
PSD	3	Police Stree	et Down				
REG	3	Regular					
REN	4	Renew					
SDO	2	Street Down	n				
VDO	3	Vendor Dov	wn				
VEN	3	Vendor					
VOR	3	VOR					
WFM	3	Wait For Ma	ating		✓		
WFP	3	Waiting For	r Part				
							-

4. Select SAVE.

Availability Unit Status

The Availability Unit Status frame allows you to view and maintain availability information for any unit that has an Operational Class Code. If System Flag 2040 has been set to "Y," then this frame automatically displays when a work order is created, cancelled, completed or suspended. You can also access this frame outside of the work order by using a menu.

Maintain a Unit Status

- 1. Access the Availability Status History Query frame.
- 2. Query on the unit to view.
- 3. Double-click "New," in the **Oper Status** column in order to change the status of the unit. The system displays the "Unit" with the most current status on the Availability Unit Status frame.
- 4. Press Tab to access the Operational Status field.
- 5. Enter a new status in the **Operational Status** field.
- 6. Update the values in the following fields:
 - Effective Date
 - Est. Days OOS or Est. Complete Date
 - Comments
 - **Note**: System Flag 5086 determines whether the user enters an Est. Days OOS or Est. Complete Date. Effective Date cannot be a future date or a date prior to the most recent effective date. If the user has already confirmed, the effective date and time cannot be prior to the confirmation time.

SAVE	NDO REFRESH DELETE FIND RELATED ~
Availability	Unit Status
- Unit Information	
Unit: 0108SM	2007 PIPE TRAILER
Operational Entity: 0013	test
Operational Class: STANDARD	Testing
Operational Status: 00S	minor repair
Disposition Code: 3	OOS Onsite Priority B
Effective Date: 09/15/2023 15:03:42	0
Est. Days OOS: 1	Est. Complete Date: 109/16/2023 15:00:00
Comment: PMB	
Parking Location:	
Parking Spot:	
Spare:	

When opening a Work Order for a unit and you select **SAVE**, depending on the system flag setting the Availability Unit Status will display. You must then change the operational status with the idea being that you would not be opening a Work Order unless there was a problem, which means the status should change. If you try to save without making a change, a message displays indicating that the operational status must be changed. You are then forced to change the operational status before saving this frame.

A feature in Work Order Main exists where justification is required when a new work order would put a class of units below the availability requirement. A frame pops-up with the standard message describing the deficiency and requests an authorized user ID and password (if the user does not have the user privilege, (JUSTIFY UNIT DEFICNY [justify unit deficiency]). Notes justifying the deficiency must also be entered. These notes are added to the work order notes.

Only users with the JUSTIFY UNIT DEFICNY user privilege are allowed to justify a unit deficiency.

If the login user has the authorization, the program detects this, and fills in the user and password. If a different user needs to be the justifier, select the user and password fields and overwrite the values shown there. If the login user does not have the authorization, the cursor lands in the user field, and the user will need to enter the user code and password.

System Flag 2038 needs to be set to "J" for the justification prompting to occur.

The same functionality occurs when the Work Order is completed. Only this time, the operational status will automatically display "AVL" or whichever operational status is set to disposition code of "Available." This can be changed, but the idea is that if the Work Order is complete, the unit should be leaving the garage, which means it is available for use.

If a Work Order is "cancelled" and there are no other open work orders for that unit, the operational status will be automatically changed to the status that was entered in System Flag 5072.

7. Select **SAVE**.

Availability Requirements

The Availability Requirements frame designates the number of units required (by class) for a particular entity at a specific time.

Change an Availability Requirement

- 1. Access the Availability Requirements frame.
- 2. Access the **Operational Entity** field and select **Find**.
- 3. Double-click on the desired entity on the Operational Entity Codes page.
- 4. Enter the type of unit required for the entered operational line in the **Operational Class** field and press **Tab**.
- 5. Enter the line that needs requirements in the **Operational Line** field and press **Tab**.

The current date displays in the **Effective Date** field. This is the date the entered requirements are to go into effect. To change the date, just type over the highlighted date. Future dates can be entered. Backdating is permitted if the user has the proper privilege.

- 6. Update the date in the Effective Date field, if necessary.
- 7. Enter the number of units required for this line in the **Quantity Required** field and press **Tab**.
- 8. Enter the email address, if a user is to be notified when requirements change, in the **E-Mail Address** field.



9. Select **SAVE**.

Note: If you delete the current record, the previous "Quantity Required" will be in effect.

Availability Unit Confirmation

The Availability Unit Confirmation frame allows you to confirm the number of units that are out of service for the selected Operational Entity, Operational Line and Confirm Date, provided you have the UNITAVAIL-CONFIRMCT user privilege and authority to the operational entity.

Confirm the Number of Units Out of Service

- 1. Access the Availability Unit Confirmation Unit frame.
- 2. Access the **Operational Entity** field and select **Find**.
- 3. Double-click on the desired entity on the Operational Entity Codes page.
- 4. Enter the line that needs unit confirmation in the **Operational Line** field and press **Tab**.
- 5. Enter the date in the **Confirm Date** field.

If System Flag 2052 is set to "N" and the date falls on a weekend or holiday, a message will display, "You cannot confirm on a weekend" or "You cannot confirm on a holiday." If you enter a date that is outside of the time range set in Availability Line Codes, a message will display indicating that the date is either too early or too late.

You will not be able to continue until the date and time fall within the Confirm Time and the Line Time on the Availability Line Times frame.

After the system accepts the Confirm Date, proceed to the next step.

6. Enter your **User ID** and **Password**.

The system only accepts your user ID and password if you have the privilege, UNITAVAIL-CONFIRMCT. If you do not have this privilege, the system displays the "User (insert name) is not authorized to confirm" message.

7. Enter the number of out of service units, for the current time and date, in the **Units Out** of **Service** field.

If the number of units out of service is different than what M5 has, the "CANNOT CONFIRM – There are 0 units out of service. Please review the unit out of service list" message appears.

You cannot save this request until the out of service count is the same as what M5 indicates.

Multiple confirmations can be made for a particular operational entity and line as long as the date and time fall within the appropriate range. The Availability Confirmation Query only displays the latest or most recent confirmation time.

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND
Availabili	ty Uni	t Confir	mation	
History Information				
Operational Entity 0210	:	CUSTOMER AFF	AIRS	
Operational Line: PM		PM LINE		
Confirm Date: 09/17/2023 13:50:				
User ID:				
Password:				
Units Out Of Servi	ce:			

8. Select SAVE.

7. Queries

The Unit Availability Module uses the following queries:

- Availability Confirmation Query
- Availability Status Query
- Availability Line Query
- Availability Current Status Query
- Availability Required Query
- Availability Status History Query

Availability Confirmation Query

The Availability Confirmation Query allows you to search for and view all operational entities and their respective confirmation times for a selected Operational Line, Rollup Entity, or Confirm Date (you may also filter on a combination of the three). For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	
Availabili	ty Con	firmati	on Que	ry	
-History Information-					
Operational Line:					
Rollup Entity:					
Confirm Date:		Clear	Retriev	e	
Confirmed and Unco	nfirmed Operatio	nal Entities (Loade	ed 0 records)		_
Oper Entity Entity D	escription C	onfirm Time User	Status 🥅		

Availability Status Query

The Availability Status Query allows you to search for and view Unit Operational Status History by Operation Entity or Group. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
Availability Status Query	
History Information	
Operational Entity: 🗸	
Unit Number:	
Operational Class:	
Maint Location:	
None V Select one to provide more query information	
Clear Retrieve	
Unit Operational Status History (Loaded 0 records)	
Operational Operational Operational Operational Unit No Entity Class Status Code Effective Date Login User	

Availability Line Query

The Availability Line Query allows you to search for and view the Operational Line Requirement history for a selected Operational Entity or Group and Class by Line or Date. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE	UN	DO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND			
Availability Line Query								
-History Inform	C History Information							
Operational	Entity: 🗸							
Operational	Class:							
Query By: None V S	Query By: None ✔ Select one to provide more query information							
Clea	ir 🔹	Retrieve				1		
Operational Line Requirement History (Loaded o records)								
Operational Entity	Operational Line	Line Time	Operational Class	Effective Date	Units Required			

Availability Current Status Query

The Availability Current Status Query allows you to search for and view the status of units for a selected Operational Entity or Group. For additional information, refer to the help file.

	SAVE	00	REFRESH	DELETI	E FIND	MOR	E 🗸 🔪			
A	vailability (Curre	nt St	atus (Query					
ſ	History Information									
	Operational Entity: 🗸									
	Operational Class:									
	Operational Status:									
	Disposition Code:									
	ANY V									
	Current Job Maint Loc:									
	Exclude Available:		Clear	Dot	triovo					
			Clear	Re	ulleve					
	Total Information									
ſ	Units currently UNAVAIL									
C										
j,	0									
ł	Operational Unit Current Sta	tus History (l	Loaded 0 reco	ords)						
	Unit No Entity Description	Operational Class	Operational Status	Disposition Code	Days OOS Effective Date	Work Order	Work Order Open Date	Current Job Maint Loc	Status Comments	Login User 🛄

Availability Required Query

The Availability Require Query allows you to search for and view the number of units required versus the number of units available per Entity, Line, and Class. For additional information, refer to the help file.

	SAVE	l	JNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIN	١D		
Α	vaila	bility	' Req	uired (Query				
ſ	-History Info	rmation —							
	Operationa Operationa	al Entity: 🗸 al Class:]]			
	Operationa Line Time:	al Line:							
	From Date	: kday Only?		To Date:	ncy Only?]0			
	No 🗸			No 🗸 Clear	Ret	rieve			
	Operational Units Requirement and Availability Query (Loaded 0 records)								
	Oper Entity	Oper Class	Day Date Wee	Of ek Oper Line I	Line Time Confir	m Time Re	Units equired	Units Avail	

Availability Status History Query

The Availability Status History Query allows you to search for and view the Operational Status History for a specific unit number. For additional information, refer to the help file.

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND				
Availability St	atus Hist	ory Qu	iery				
- History Information			-				
Unit:	1						_
Operational Entity:							
Operational Class:							
Filter by Operational Entity ar	nd Class:						
Operational Status:	1						
Disposition Code:	_						
Effective Date:	0						
Work Order No:	Clear	Retrieve					
			_				
Operational Status History (Loaded 0 records)							
Oper Status Disp Code Statu	us Description WO No.	Unit No. Effec	tive Date Commen	ts 🔳			

Updates

Release	Section	Description
23.2	All sections	Applied miscellaneous writing style updates throughout the document.